

Clean Sport Hub: Learning Management System & Assurance Portal

Invitation to Tender

Date: 31/01/2025



Contents

1.	About this Invitation to Tender	3
2.	Scope and Goals of the Solution	4
3.	Guidance on Completing Tender Responses	8
4.	The Procurement Process	9
5.	Procurement Timetable	10
6.	Evaluation of Tender Responses	10
7.	Clarification Questions	11
8.	Rules of the Procurement	12
9.	TUPE	12
10.	Submission of Tender Responses	13
11.	Form and Content of Tender Responses	13
	Meeting the selection criteria – reliance on others, consortium submissio submissions involving sub-contractors	ns 14
13.	Contract Award	16
App	pendix I - Glossary	17
App	pendix II: Rules of the Procurement	19
App	pendix III: Questionnaires	22
App	pendix IV – Evaluation categories, scoring methodologies and weightings	23
	RT A – Selection Questionnaire RT B – Award Questionnaire	23 24
App	pendix V: Form of Tender	26
Арр	pendix VI – Collusive Tendering and Canvassing Statement	27

January 2025 Page 2 of 27



1. About this Invitation to Tender

- 1.1 Thank you for your interest in this opportunity. In reading this Invitation to Tender (ITT), please note that any capitalised terms used within this document shall have the meanings given to them in Appendix I (Glossary).
- 1.2 As explained in the FTS Notice, this ITT relates to the procurement process by UK Anti-Doping (UKAD) to appoint a supplier(s) of the Clean Sport Hub, a Learning Management System (LMS) and Assurance portal. UKAD is a non-departmental public body responsible for tackling doping in sports and prosecuting violations of the World Anti-Doping Code (the Code). UKAD was launched in 2009 ahead of the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and is currently located across two sites. UKAD's headquarters are based at SportPark, 3 Oakwood Drive, Loughborough, LE11 3QF. UKAD has another premises at Trafalgar House, 1 Bedford Park, Croydon, CR0 2AQ. UKAD is responsible for the implementation and management of the UK National Anti-Doping Policy, as well as ensuring the UK is compliant with the UNESCO convention and the Code. Additional information about UKAD can be found on our website (www.ukad.org.uk).
- 1.3 UKAD requires an integrated approach to bring together two key strands of work, the Assurance Framework, and a LMS (used across the Education and Testing teams). There are common elements across both areas that indicate a single Solution can be used to meet all parties' needs.
- 1.4 This ITT serves two primary functions:
 - 1.4.1 it sets out all of the questions which UKAD requires Bidders to answer as part of their Tender response; and
 - 1.4.2 it explains the criteria to be applied and how Bidders' Tender responses will be evaluated.
- 1.5 This ITT should be read in conjunction with any other documents issued by UKAD in respect of this procurement, and in particular the Specification. The Specification provides the key elements which are required in the Solution however should not be seen as the final Specification. The final Specification will be agreed with the selected Bidder.
- 1.6 Bidders should refer to Appendix II which sets out the Rules of the Procurement. These rules apply throughout the Procurement, and Bidders are reminded that breach of those rules may result in the Bidder being excluded from the Procurement.



1.7 Bidders should note that the deadline for submission of Tender responses is 12:00pm on Friday 7 March 2025. Bidders should refer to Appendix III for further information on the detailed response requirements.

2. Scope and Goals of the Solution

- 2.1 The successful bidder will be able to articulate and demonstrate the ability to address the goals of each of the Assurance, Education and Testing teams given below, as well as having a thorough understanding of the requirements provided in the Specification.
- 2.2 The current Clean Sport Hub currently has (on average) 1500 active users per month and integrates the Education, Assurance and Testing requirements outlined below. The current Solution allows for different levels of permissions based on the type of user.
- 2.3 Education UKAD's Education programme, is designed to support athletes and Athlete Support Personnel (Eg Coaches, Parents, Medical staff) to ensure they are fully aware of their rights and responsibilities, when athletes are called to undertake a drugs test (doping control). This is underpinned by the core principle of education before testing. The Education team is looking for a LMS that can host its education services, providing users with a platform to gain accreditation in clean sport education. The platform will play host to several programmes, that will be targeted to specific under groups and contain resources such as courses/ programmes, as well as other resource formats such as video files and PDFs. The ambition of the of the Clean Sport Hub is to become a platform in which can be used to monitor users' whole education journey, allowing administrators to monitor users progress both online and face-to-face delivery.

The Education team's requirement consists of two parts:

- LMS eLearning covering user registration process, surveys, reporting, certification and submitting evidence
- Education Administration Learner management and access, administration access rights, uploading education records

Part 1 - LMS eLearning

 Ability for users to register and set up an account themselves. User accounts will require different permissions added that will determine which



- courses/programmes they will be assigned. The ability to add users / groups of users, via a CSV upload. Each user will require a unique ID.
- Courses/programmes will be uploaded via a SCORM file and assigned to users based on permissions and tags. The programmes will include documents, videos, SCORM courses, quiz assessments and evaluation surveys (quantitative and qualitative data) with the ability for linking programmes and unlocking time-bound content
- There will be a number of surveys within the programmes which will need to be used to give an insight into our users anti-doping mindset. These surveys be used throughout our users learning journeys, for example they would take the same survey two years apart and compare the results side by side. These results would need to be taken anonymously, thus using the unique IDs mentioned in the registration process.
- Ability to automatically add renewal courses to specific programmes. After two
 years, the user's education accreditation expires, meaning users are required
 to complete the renewal course that has been assigned to them based on their
 profile tags. An email push notification 30 day out from expiry is required
- To generate e-Certificates following completion of courses/programmes. These
 will need to display user's name, dates, pass grades and course details. These
 will need to be downloadable as a PDF. UKAD would require e-certificate
 security to minimise the risk of tampering.
- A select number of users will be required to submit evidence for accreditation, this includes word documents, audio files and videos, these submissions will require a feedback mechanism and accreditation approval process.

Part 2 - Education Administration

- The ability to restrict access to non-UK resident users outside of the UK. There
 will be accounts that require exception, for example, UK athletes training and
 competing overseas that need to access the LMS, therefore, the ability to
 "unlock" accounts will be important.
- For users outside our remit or for certain content, we are looking at introducing a paywall. This will require users to be able to pay for the service online and to be able to immediately access the course / resource.
- The ability to access and complete their assigned course/programme anywhere, anytime (either online or offline) to meet their needs, which can then sync when regaining an internet connection without losing data completed.
- The ability to conduct testing on the functionality of a course or programme via a sandbox/User Acceptance Testing (UAT)



- A robust reporting system which UKAD can apply and save filters and retrieve repeatable data for monitoring and evaluation purposes. This is required for courses, programmes and surveys.
- UKAD requires third party administrators to have restricted access to user data, specific to their sport. For example, the anti-doping lead contact for a sports national governing body (e.g. Lawn Tennis Association), would have access to tennis players education records, for tracking and monitoring purposes. They would also require access to the reporting function, again with restricted access.
- A function of allowing administrators to upload attendance register data and view a user's education history, (this will include engagement with the LMS as well as attendance at face-to-face workshops.).
- We require a robust reporting system which UKAD can apply and save filters and retrieve repeatable data for monitoring and evaluation purposes. This is required for courses, programmes and surveys.
- 2.4 Assurance The Assurance Framework is the first step that NGBs take to demonstrate to UKAD their anti-doping compliance. The Assurance Framework outlines a series of mandatory requirements, the fulfilment of which NGBs must evidence in order to give UKAD 'assurance' that they are meeting their antidoping responsibilities. The Assurance team's requirement consists of two parts:
 - eLearning for NGBs classic LMS functionality
 - A submissions area, which is non-standard functionality, and is explained in more detail below

An NGB's compliance made up of three steps (as referenced below):

- Completing the initial Assurance Framework submission to evidence how they meet the 24 requirements
- 2. Completing an Annual Submission of information/evidence to UKAD against a small number of the Assurance Framework requirements
- 3. Completing an Assurance Review when selected (including using the frameworks area to provide evidence/information in advance and then when any actions are identified)

Step 1: An NGB must be able to complete an initial submission online against the Assurance Framework responsibilities and download supporting resources to help achieve these, all within a secure area. They must then be able to answer the compliance questions on the Assurance Framework, which is expected to require the input of several people within an NGB to complete.



To be clear, the Assurance Framework is effectively one survey made up of multiple questions that multiple members of an NGB should be able to access and answer, ideally from their own LMS user account. UKAD realises that this is outside the norm for most LMS and is therefore looking for practical solutions that address this issue – having a shared login for all members of an NGB is not a preferred solution as it negates any possibility to audit who has accessed the framework survey.

The following goals are all critical to the success of the Solution:

- UKAD to be able to create, edit, replicate or delete a submission
- An NGB to see and download all supporting submission documentation as required
- An NGB to be able to upload files / documents of supporting evidence for the submission
- · Ability to see dashboards of progress across different criteria
- Ability for several users to access the submission document and submit answers
- Ability for a user to 'Save' the submission part way through answering with the ability to return to it and continue from where they left off
- Ability for a user to answer a submission in a non-linear non-sequential way, i.e. they should be able to answer questions in whatever order they prefer
- UKAD to be able to review and approve evidence submitted by an NGB
- UKAD to be able to review compliance and download reports
- UKAD to be able to fully administer the submissions, including:
 - o Archiving previous submissions
 - Setting completion dates by which the NGB needs to complete the submission, with automated reminders sent before the deadline (and after if not completed)
 - Allocating a submission to multiple NGBs at the same time

Steps 2 and 3: Following completion of the initial Assurance Framework submission, an NGB should be able to complete subsequent submissions to fulfil different objectives (including steps 2 and 3 above), each reviewed by UKAD and all within a secure area. The subsequent submissions will have the same functionality as the Assurance Framework (as referenced in step 1 above) and housed in the same area.

2.5 Testing – UKAD conducts on average 10,000 Doping Control tests a year. These tests are collected by UKAD's external workforce known as Doping



Control Personnel (DCP). UKAD has approximately 200 DCP who are based across all regions of the UK. The testing team will utilise the LMS, with the following goals critical to the success of the Solution:

- Onboarding users will consist of a programme containing training manuals and assessments. The documentation such as the training manuals will need to be tracked on whether it has been accessed.
- Tracking and monitoring assessment progress; this would require the ability to monitor their attendance at offline events such as "training missions" and also complete or upload feedback forms which would need to be reviewed both internally by UKAD and external assessors
- Assess users through written assessments, surveys and feedback, these would require a customisable reporting functionality that can allow UKAD to identify trends and training targets
- Require custom admin rights to certain users

3. Guidance on Completing Tender Responses

- 3.1 The Tender response questions are set out in Appendix III. Bidders are asked to note that the Tender response is comprised of two questionnaires followed by an interview:
 - 3.1.1 **Part A (Selection Questionnaire)** which sets out the questions to assess Bidders' economic and financial standing, and technical and professional ability, alongside the suitability to meet our requirements both in functionality and in data protection; and
 - 3.1.2 **Part B (Award Questionnaire)** which sets out the questions to assess Bidders' ability to meet the functionality of the proposed Solution and suitability to meet the needs of UKAD, including a pricing submission; and
 - 3.1.3 **Part C (Interview) –** which will be an opportunity for the Bidder to elaborate on how their Solution will meet the needs of UKAD via a live demo. This will also include financial due diligence checks.
- 3.2 Please answer each question in the relevant space provided and within the word limit stated.
- 3.3 Please ensure that all questions are completed in full, in the format requested, and within the page limits specified (if applicable). Where any response exceeds a stated page limit, UKAD will disregard the additional text and therefore not evaluate any information provided beyond the limit.



- 3.4 If any question is not applicable to the Bidder, please mark the response as "N/A".
- 3.5 Any clarification questions which Bidders wish to raise in respect of this ITT must be made in accordance with the process set out in paragraph 7 below.
- 3.6 Further detailed information on the requirements of the Solution are contained in the Specification, which Bidders should read carefully. This Specification contains the more granular requirements that UKAD aspire to.
- 3.7 UKAD may at any time during the procurement process request that the Bidder submits all or part of the supporting documents without delay.

4. The Procurement Process

- 4.1 UKAD is a contracting authority as defined in the Regulations. The Procurement is therefore subject to those rules.
- 4.2 The Procurement is being undertaken in accordance with the Open Procedure, as set out in regulation 27 of the Regulations.
- 4.3 UKAD intends to award the Opportunity based on the content of written proposals and stakeholder interviews only. The purpose of the interview is for the Bidder to demonstrate how a Solution would work in practice, feeding into the final selection of the Bidder.
- 4.4 The evaluation will be based on the responses submitted by each Bidder to Parts A and B of Appendix III and Part C, the interview phase. UKAD has appointed an evaluation team on the basis that each individual member is a subject matter expert in their relevant field. Not all evaluators will evaluate every question; however, UKAD will seek to ensure that each question is evaluated by more than one evaluator (taking their expertise into account) and that there is a consistent approach in this regard amongst all Tender submissions.
- 4.5 Once UKAD has performed the internal evaluation based on the responses to Appendix III, a selection of bidders will be contacted to conduct a round of interviews where UKAD will seek further clarifications and information.
- 4.6 UKAD encourages small and medium size enterprises to participate in this Procurement, either as a Bidders, consortium members or sub-contractors.



5. Procurement Timetable

5.1 UKAD proposes the following timetable for the award of the Contract. This is intended as a guide only. Whilst UKAD does not intend to depart from the timetable, it reserves the right to do so at any time:

Date	Activity
Friday 31 January 2025	Despatch of FTS Notice and procurement
	documents published
Friday 21 February 2025	Deadline for clarifications
Friday 28 February 2025	Clarifications responses provided by UKAD
Friday 7 March 2025	Deadline for submission of Tender responses
Friday 21 March 2025	Notification of invitation to interview and request
	for financial information
Monday 31 March – Friday 4	Interview period
April 2025	
Monday 14 April 2025	Notification of outcome of Procurement via
	distribution of Standstill letters
Monday 28 April 2025	Standstill period ends

5.2 The date for execution of the Contract with the successful Bidder will be Tuesday 30 September 2025.

6. Evaluation of Tender Responses

- 6.1 Bidders' responses to the ITT questions will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria set out in this ITT.
- 6.2 Each of the questions set out in Appendix III falls within one of the following evaluation categories:
 - 6.2.1 "FIO" this means that the response is for information only, and will not be evaluated; however, in order to provide a compliant response Bidders must answer these questions in full to the extent they are applicable;
 - 6.2.2 "P/F" the response will be assessed as being either a "Pass" or "Fail" in accordance with the explanations given for each individual question; or
 - 6.2.3 "**Scored**" the response attracts a specific weighting, as identified, and will be scored in accordance with the stated methodology.
- 6.3 Bidders' Tender responses will be assessed in the following stages:

Stage 1 – Completeness Check



6.4 In the first instance, Bidders' responses will be assessed for completeness to ensure that the Bidder has provided a full response to all questions and in accordance with the requirements set out in the procurement documents. Any Bidder which has not provided a complete response in accordance with the stated requirements may, subject to UKAD's right of clarification, be excluded from further participation in this Procurement.

Stage 2 – Pass/Fail Check (Part A – Selection Questionnaire)

6.5 Bidders which are considered to have satisfied the eligibility requirements will then have their responses to those questions set out in Part A of Appendix III (the Selection Questionnaire) which are designated as Pass/Fail, assessed against the relevant criteria. An explanation as to what constitutes a "Pass" and what constitutes a "Fail" for each question is contained in Table 1 of Appendix IV to this ITT. For the avoidance of any doubt, a Bidder which receives a "Fail" for any of these questions will, subject to UKAD's right of clarification, be excluded from further participation in this Procurement.

Stage 3 – Scoring (Part B – Award Questionnaire)

6.6 Only those Bidders which have passed stages 1 and 2 above will proceed to this phase of the evaluation process. At this point, UKAD will consider those Bidders' responses to Part B of Appendix III (the Award Questionnaire). An explanation as to the scoring criteria for each question is contained in Table 2 of Appendix IV to this ITT.

Stage 4 – FIO (Part C - Interviews)

6.7 A select number of Bidders from Stage 3 will be invited to an interview. This will be FIO to build on the responses provided in Stage 3. Bidders who progress to stage 4 will be subject to financial due diligence checks, further information on what this entails will be provided.

7. Clarification Questions

- 7.1 Bidders must only submit clarification questions, and otherwise communicate with UKAD, in accordance with the process set out in this section.
- 7.2 Any clarification questions arising from the procurement documents, including this ITT, which may have a bearing on the Bidder's Tender response should be raised in writing to **procurement@ukad.org.uk** as soon as possible and, in any event, no later than **Friday 21 February 2025**. UKAD may, at its absolute discretion (but shall not be obliged to), respond to queries submitted after this



date. UKAD will endeavour to respond to all clarification questions by **Friday 28 February 2025**.

- 7.3 All such queries received, together with UKAD's responses, will be circulated to all Bidders who have requested and obtained the procurement documents. This process will be managed through the following email address procurement@ukad.org.uk. Notwithstanding this general position, there may be occasions when UKAD considers the clarification question or its response to be commercially sensitive and, as such, UKAD reserves the right to respond only to the Bidder raising the clarification.
- 7.4 Where the Bidder seeking clarification considers its question to be commercially sensitive, the Bidder should mark the clarification question "COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE". The decision as to whether a clarification question is commercially sensitive or not rests solely with UKAD. If UKAD considers that it is able to answer the clarification question on a sensitive basis, then it shall do so. However, if UKAD considers that it is unable to answer the clarification question on a sensitive basis, then it will give the Bidder seeking clarification the opportunity to remove any commercially sensitive marking and allow the question to be answered in the normal way. If the Bidder does not agree, the clarification question will be considered withdrawn and will not be answered.
- 7.5 If, as a result of a clarification question or otherwise, UKAD is of the opinion that the procurement documents require amendment then UKAD shall be entitled to do so by giving notice via the Portal.

8. Rules of the Procurement

8.1 The rules of the Procurement are set out in Appendix II to this ITT. Bidders are asked to review these carefully to ensure compliance throughout the Procurement.

9. TUPE

9.1.1 In respect of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE), following consultation with its incumbent supplier (Ecom Learning Solutions), UKAD does not consider itself to be the transferor nor transferee of the staff employed by the incumbent contractor in respect of this Opportunity.



10. Submission of Tender Responses

- 10.1 Bidders must submit their full Tender responses in accordance with the requirements of this ITT by no later than 12:00pm on Friday 7 March 2025 which must comprise the following:
 - 10.1.1 responses to the **Selection Questionnaire** and **Award Questionnaire** (see Part A and B of Appendix III);
 - 10.1.2 completed Form of Tender (see Appendix V); and
 - 10.1.3 completed **Collusive Tendering and Canvassing Statement** (see Appendix VI).
- 10.2 Any Tender response received after this time may be rejected unless the Bidder can demonstrate that failure to submit on time was caused by the fault of, or can be attributed to, UKAD.
- 10.3 Responsibility for the timely submission of completed Tender responses rests solely with the Bidder.
- 10.4 Tender responses must be submitted through the following email address **procurement@ukad.org.uk.** For the avoidance of doubt, submission via any other means will not be accepted by UKAD.

11. Form and Content of Tender Responses

- 11.1 Tender responses must be in English.
- 11.2 All financial information submitted in a Bidder's response must be denominated in Sterling (GBP), except where financial information is provided in a certified supporting document (such as a set of financial statements) where it is sufficient for the information to remain in the original currency. If financial information is being converted from one currency into GBP, the exchange rate used should be clearly stated.
- 11.3 Each question will only be evaluated on the information provided in response to that question and therefore all pertinent information should be included in the response to each relevant question.
- 11.4 Bidders must not:
 - 11.4.1 cross-reference answers from one response to another, even where there is commonality;
 - 11.4.2 include any embedded document. If an attachment is required by this ITT, please provide this as a separate file, ensuring that it is clearly



- named and referenced to the relevant section of the response requirement;
- 11.4.3 exceed the maximum number of pages allowed for the responses;
- 11.4.4 use a font size smaller or larger than 10;
- 11.4.5 change the format of any of the response documents, including spreadsheets, included in this ITT and any associated documents;
- 11.4.6 include any extraneous information which has not been specifically requested in the ITT including, for example, promotional literature, standard terms of trading etc.

12. Meeting the selection criteria – reliance on others, consortium submissions and submissions involving sub-contractors

Reliance on Others

- 12.1 Bidders may rely on the financial standing and/or technical capability of others provided that it can prove to UKAD that it will have at its disposal the resources and financial standing necessary to deliver the Contract.
- 12.2 For example, a letter from such other entity confirming that it will provide the necessary support may suffice. However, UKAD reserves the right, at its absolute discretion, to require further assurances in relation to the availability of resources to the Bidder and that UKAD may have full legal recourse to such resources as if the resources were provided by the Bidder itself. If sufficient assurance is not provided, the Bidder will be assessed on the basis of its own financial standing and/or technical capability as appropriate.
- 12.3 Bidders should note that a contractual commitment, for example in the form of a guarantee, may be required before a contract is executed. By submitting a Tender response, the Bidder warrants and represents that they can, and will, comply, or procure compliance, with such a commitment if required by UKAD.
- 12.4 Failure by a Bidder to comply with any such requirement may result in its exclusion from the Procurement.
- 12.5 Where a Bidder relies on another entity to satisfy any of the criteria the Selection and Award Questionnaires, the Bidder must fully answer the relevant criterion on behalf of the other entity including demonstrating why that experience will be available to it should it be awarded the Contract. In addition, that other entity must also submit a response to all parts as if it were the Bidder.

Consortium Submissions

January 2025



- 12.6 In order to provide the full range of services required by UKAD, organisations may wish to collaborate to form a consortium which will then apply as a single Bidder for the purposes of the Procurement. Such consortium Bidders should specify in full in their Selection Questionnaire response the identity of their proposed members and shall appoint one of the members to be the lead Bidder for the purposes of the Procurement.
- 12.7 The Bidder must specify in its Selection Questionnaire response the commercial and legal relationship between the consortium members and any agreements giving rise to such a relationship. UKAD reserves the right to request evidence and copies of any agreements between the members and to comment upon them and take them into account in the evaluation process.
- 12.8 UKAD may, at its absolute discretion and in particular, require the Bidder to contract:
 - 12.8.1 on the basis of joint and several liability;
 - 12.8.2 with a particular single member of the consortium as the prime contractor (with the other members providing contractual warranties and/or quarantees); and/or
 - 12.8.3 as an incorporated or unincorporated special purpose vehicle.
- 12.9 Failure by a Bidder to comply with any such requirement may result in its exclusion from the Procurement.
- 12.10 Where a Bidder is bidding as a consortium, the lead Bidder must provide full details of the consortium membership, include this information in the Selection Questionnaire.

Submissions involving Sub-Contractors

- 12.11 Bidders may use sub-contractors if they are successful in this Procurement.
- 12.12 In the event that any proposed sub-contractors have been identified within the Selection Questionnaire, and they are considered to be a Key Sub-Contractor (as that term is defined in Appendix I), the Bidder must comply with paragraphs 12.1 to 12.10 above, and submit all information requested therein in respect of the Key Sub-Contractor.
- 12.13 In the event that proposed sub-contractors have not been identified at this stage, no specific information in this regard is required.



13. Contract Award

- 13.1 Subject to any final due diligence checks and obtaining relevant internal approvals, UKAD intends to enter into the Contract with the successful Bidder following completion of the above-mentioned "standstill period". However, there is likely to be a transition period to start the integration of our current LMS content and users to a new LMS. UKAD reserves the right to revert to the second placed Bidder, in the event that it is unable to execute a Contract with a successful Bidder (e.g., in circumstances where the successful Bidder attempts to negotiate amendments to the Contract which UKAD considers are material changes, or the successful Bidder delays execution of the Contract without reasonable justification).
- 13.2 Where UKAD is not able to award the Contract to the second placed Bidder due to similar circumstances, it reserves the right to approach Bidders in order of rank and award the Contract to the next placed Bidder. In submitting a Tender, it will be deemed that Bidders acknowledge and agree that their Tender will remain open for acceptance during a period of at least 3 months, following the Tender deadline.



Appendix I - Glossary

	Term Definition						
Award Questionnaire	questionnaire which sets out UKAD's award criteria in Part B of Appendix III of this ITT						
Bidder	a bidding organisation who wishes to be considered for this Opportunity						
Clean Sport Hub	UKADs current online learning platform						
Contract	the form of contract which UKAD intends to invite the successful Bidder to execute following its award decision						
DCP	Doping Control Personnel						
Doping Control	all steps and processes from test distribution planning through to ultimate disposition of any appeal and the enforcement of consequences, including all steps and processes in between, including but not limited to, Testing and Sample collection						
FTS	the e-notification service Find a Tender used to post and view public sector procurement notices						
FTS Notice	the contract notice published in the FTS notifying the market of the Opportunity						
ITT	this invitation to tender document						
Key Sub-Contractor	any sub-contractor which the Bidder places reliance on in order to respond to, or satisfy a minimum requirement within, the Selection Questionnaire						
Learning Management System	is a software application for the administration, documentation, tracking, reporting, automation, and delivery of educational courses, training programs, materials or learning and development programs.						
National Governing Body	an organisation that governs and administers sport.						
Opportunity	the opportunity made available to the market by UKAD for the appointment of a provider to provide the Services, as more fully described in the Specification						



	Term	Definition
Price Submission	the Bidder's Questionnair	response to Part B of the Award e
Procurement	• •	procurement process by UKAD for doping control sample collection
Regulations	Public Contra	acts Regulations 2015
Selection Questionnaire	•	naire which sets out UKAD's eria in Part A of Appendix III of this
Services		to be provided by the successful KAD as more particularly described cation
Solution		d to talk about the combined provided by the Bidder
Specification	the documen	t entitled 'Specification' which this ITT
Tender		response to the ITT to include all of ts referred to in paragraph 9.1 of
UKAD	UK Anti-Dop	ng
WAD Code	World Anti-D	oping Code



Appendix II: Rules of the Procurement

1. DATA PROTECTION

1.1. It is possible that Bidders' responses may contain Personal Data (as defined under the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR). Where such information is provided, the Bidder agrees to such Personal Data being collected, held and used by UKAD in accordance with and for the purposes of administering the Procurement and contract award. By providing such information, the Bidder warrants, on a continuing basis, that it has: (a) all requisite authority and has obtained and will maintain all necessary consents required under the Data Protection Regulations (which means the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR), Data Protection Act 2018, the Privacy and Electronic Communications (EC Directive) Regulations 2003 and all relevant regulations together with any codes of conduct and guidance issued by the Information Commissioner; and (b) otherwise fully complied with all of its obligations under the Data Protection Regulations in order to disclose to UKAD the Personal Data, and allow UKAD to carry out the Procurement. The Bidder shall immediately notify UKAD if any of the consents are revoked or changed in any way which impacts on UKAD's rights or obligations in relation to such Personal Data.

2. COSTS AND EXPENSES

- 2.1. Bidders remain responsible for all costs and expenses incurred by them or by any third party acting under instructions from the Bidder in connection with taking part in the Procurement, regardless of whether such costs arise as a consequence direct or indirect of any amendments made to the procurement documents by UKAD at any time.
- 2.2. Under no circumstances will UKAD or any of its advisors be liable for any costs or expenses incurred by Bidders, funders and/or its respective advisors arising directly or indirectly from the Procurement or termination thereof, including, without limitation, any changes or adjustments made to the procurement documents, or the exclusion/disqualification of a Bidder.
- 2.3. For the avoidance of doubt, where a Bidder is disqualified or excluded from the Procurement, under no circumstances will UKAD or its advisors be liable for any costs or expenses howsoever incurred by such Bidders.

3. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- 3.1. The information contained within this ITT and its accompanying documents (the "Procurement Documents") are the intellectual property of UKAD or such third parties with whom UKAD has sought prior permission to utilise their information. Bidders shall not reproduce, copy, distribute or otherwise make available to any third party the whole or any part of such information in any form (including photocopying it or storing it in any medium including electronic means) without the prior written permission of UKAD, other than for use strictly for the purpose of submitting a Tender response
- 3.2. The Procurement Documents and all copies thereof are and shall remain the property of UKAD and must be returned or destroyed on demand.
- 3.3. All specifications, and any further material issued in connection with the Procurement, remain the property

of UKAD and are to be used solely for the purpose of the Procurement.

4. CONFIDENTIALITY

- 4.1. The Bidder shall not, without the prior written consent of UKAD, advertise or publicly state that it has received this ITT or that it intends to participate in this Procurement.
- 4.2. The Bidder shall keep confidential and continue to keep confidential; all information obtained from UKAD in connection with this Opportunity, and shall not divulge the same without the prior written consent of UKAD. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to:
- 4.1.1. information already in the public domain otherwise than by breach of this paragraph;
- 4.1.2. information already in the possession of the Bidder that was not received under a duty of confidentiality;
- 4.1.3. information obtained from a third party who is free to divulge the same;
- 4.1.4. information required to be disclosed by law or a competent regulatory authority; and/or
- 4.1.5. information disclosed to the Bidder's legal or other professional advisers.
- 4.2 The Bidder consents to sharing the information contained in its Tender response for the purposes of administering the Procurement.
- 4.3. The Bidder should note that UKAD is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ("FOIA") and UKAD may be required to disclose details of the Bidder's Tender response in response to a FOIA request from third parties, either during or after the Procurement. UKAD can only withhold information where it is covered by a valid exemption as set out in the FOIA.
- 4.4. If a Bidder is concerned about possible disclosure of its Tender response, it should notify UKAD accordingly by clearly identifying (in a separate covering letter) the specific parts of its Tender response that it considers commercially sensitive or confidential (within the meaning of the FOIA), the harm that disclosure may cause and an estimated timescale of how long the information will remain sensitive. The Bidder is recommended to familiarise itself with the UK's Information Commissioner's current position on the disclosure and non-disclosure of commercially sensitive information and should not notify UKAD of a blanket labelling of its entire Tender response as confidential.
- 4.5. The Bidder must be aware that the receipt by UKAD of information marked "confidential" does not mean that UKAD may not release that information where it is required to do so pursuant to its obligations under FOIA.
- 4.6. Once the Procurement is complete UKAD may publish details of all contract awards in accordance with UK Government transparency standards.

5. NON-COLLUSION AND CANVASSING

5.1. Any attempt by any Bidder to collude with any other person to influence the Procurement in any way will result in disqualification from further participation in the Procurement. In particular, Bidders shall not:



- 5.1.1. canvass, solicit or offer any gift or consideration whatsoever as an inducement, fee or reward to any officer, employee or contractor of UKAD, or any person acting as an adviser to it in connection with the Procurement;
- 5.1.2. commit any act or omission which would constitute a breach of the Bribery Act 2010;
- 5.1.3. fix or adjust the amount or content of any Tender in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other person, other than in good faith where such other person is a proposed consortium member, or a supplier, adviser or provider of finance to the Bidder;
- 5.1.4. communicate to any person other than UKAD, or seek or obtain from such other person, information about the amount or content of any Tender, other than in good faith to obtain quotations for supplies, services or finance:
- 5.1.5. enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other person that will result in such a person refraining from submitting a Tender; and
- 5.1.6. offer or pay a sum of money, incentive or valuable consideration to any person proposing to effect changes in or omissions from any other Tender.
- 5.2. Other than where specifically permitted as described in the Procurement Documents, no attempt should be made to contact any of UKAD's staff or advisors in connection with the Procurement. Any enquiries made concerning the Procurement other than in accordance with the instructions in the Procurement Documents may be regarded as prima facie evidence of canvassing.

6. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF SUBMISSION

- 6.1. Bidders may modify their Tender response prior to the stated deadline. Any Bidder wishing to submit a new Tender response is able to delete their previous response and replace with a revised version.
- 6.2. No Tender response may be modified after the stated deadline. Bidders may withdraw their Tender responses after the deadline by notifying UKAD via the Q&A function available via the following email address procurement@ukad.org.uk.

7. WARRANTIES

- 7.1. In submitting a Tender response, the Bidder warrants, represents and undertakes that:
- 7.1.1. all information, representations and matters of fact communicated (whether in writing or otherwise) to UKAD in connection with its Tender response are true and accurate at the time of submission and shall remain so throughout the Procurement (subject to any further changes which may occur, and which should be disclosed to UKAD promptly);
- 7.1.2. it has complied with the conditions set out in the Procurement Documents in all respects; and
- 7.1.4. it has not submitted a Tender response in reliance upon any representation or statement (whether made orally, in writing or otherwise) which may have been made by UKAD's officers, employees, or agents, or appointed advisers.

8. PUBLICITY

- 8.1. No publicity in relation to the selection of Bidders, the identification of the successful Bidder, the execution of any contractual documents or the Procurement in general will be permitted unless and until UKAD has given its express prior consent to the relevant communication. In particular, no statements should be made to the press or other similar organisations regarding the nature of any solution/proposals of the Bidder in connection with the Procurement without the express prior written consent of UKAD.
- 8.2. UKAD retains the right to publicise or otherwise disclose to any third party, information in relation to the Procurement, the selection of Bidders (including details of their respective members, subcontractors, representatives, advisers, consultants, servants or agents), the Procurement in general or the execution of any contractual documents at any time.

9. COMMUNICATIONS

- 9.1. All documents, correspondence and dialogue relating to the Procurement will be communicated in the English language (any liability for errors or omissions in translated documents will remain with the Bidder). All Tender responses should also be written in the English language.
- 9.2. It is the responsibility of Bidders to monitor all email messages and clarifications issued by UKAD. UKAD accepts no liability for any Bidder's failure to consistently monitor its inbox or keep abreast of clarifications issued. All electronic communication sent by UKAD will be deemed to have been received by the Bidder at the time of transmission.
- 9.3. It is the sole responsibility of each Bidder to ensure that the individual stated as the principal contact in their Tender response is able to monitor and issue responses to any requests issued by UKAD within the specified time period.
- 9.4. All formal communications (including, but not limited to, clarifications) and the submission of Tender responses to UKAD are to be made in writing via the following email address **procurement@ukad.org.uk**.
- 9.5. If a Bidder is in doubt as to the interpretation of any part of this document; or if they consider that any of its requirements are ambiguous or conflict with any other requirements, they should contact UKAD via the following email address procurement@ukad.org.uk and UKAD will endeavour to answer enquiries prior to Tender responses being submitted. Under no circumstances should UKAD staff be contacted directly.
- 9.6. The answer may be circulated to other potential Bidders, where appropriate. The deadline for clarifications is provided in the Procurement Documents. It should be noted that clarifications outside of these timescales may not be considered.

10.DISCLAIMER

- 10.1 No information contained in this document or in any communication made between UKAD and any Bidder in connection with this document shall be relied upon as constituting a contract, agreement or representation that any contract shall be offered in accordance with this ITT and its accompanying documents.
- 10.2. UKAD will ensure that all Bidders are treated equally and in a non-discriminatory way during the Procurement. This includes prohibiting any anti-



- competitive behaviour so as to ensure a fair procurement process. Where UKAD suspects anti-competitive behaviour, it may require the Bidder to supply evidence that they are not behaving in an anti-competitive manner. Any evidence of anti-competitive behaviour may result in the Bidder being excluded from the Procurement.
- 10.3. The information contained in this document and the supporting documentation and in any written or oral communication made by UKAD is believed to be correct at the time of issue, but UKAD will have no liability for its accuracy, adequacy or completeness, and no warranty is given as such.
- 10.4. Neither the issue of the Procurement Documents, nor any of the information presented within them, be regarded as a commitment or representation on the part of UKAD (or any other person) to enter into a contractual arrangement. Nothing in this document should be interpreted as a commitment by UKAD to award a contract to a Bidder as a result of the Procurement, nor to accept the lowest price or any tender.
- 10.5. Whilst prepared in good faith and the information contained in this document is believed to be correct at the time of issue, the Procurement Documents and any ancillary documents issued to Bidders in conjunction with the Procurement Documents are intended to provide preliminary background to UKAD's objectives and requirements and neither UKAD or its advisors, nor any other awarding authorities will accept any liability for their accuracy, adequacy or completeness, nor will any express or implied warranty be given. This exclusion extends to liability in relation to any statement, opinion or conclusion contained in or any omission from, the Procurement Documents (including their appendices) and in respect of any other written or oral communication transmitted (or otherwise made available) to any Bidder.
- 10.6 Bidders are responsible for analysing and reviewing all information provided in this document and for forming their own opinions and should notify UKAD promptly of any perceived ambiguity, inconsistency or omission in this document and/or any of its associated documents and/or any information provided to Bidders as part of the Procurement.
- 10.7 Only the express terms of the contractual documents, if and when executed shall have any contractual effect in connection with the matters to which the Procurement relates.
- 10.8 UKAD reserves the right at any time to:
- 10.8.1. reject any or all Tender responses and to cancel or withdraw the Procurement without liability to Bidders at any stage;
- 10.8.2. award a contract without prior notice;
- 10.8.3. change the basis, the procedures and the timescales set out or referred to in the Procurement Documents;

- 10.8.4. require a Bidder to clarify its Tender response in writing and/or provide additional information (failure to respond adequately may result in disqualification);
- 10.8.5. terminate the Procurement;
- 10.8.6. amend the terms and conditions of the selection and evaluation process.
- 10.9 Nothing in this document is intended to exclude or limit the liability of UKAD in relation to fraud or in other circumstances where UKAD's liability may not be excluded or limited under any applicable law.

11.ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION

- 11.1. The Bidder may not assign, subcontract or encumber any right or obligation under these terms and conditions, in whole or in part, without UKAD's prior written consent.
- 11.2. UKAD may assign any or all of its rights under these terms and conditions to another party, provided that it gives Bidders prior written notice of the assignment including the identity of the assignee.

12.GENERAL

- 12.1. In respect of any documentation issued as part of the Procurement (except where indicated otherwise):
- 12.1.1. words importing one gender include all other genders and words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa;
- 12.1.2. enactment means any statute or statutory provision (whether of the United Kingdom or elsewhere), subordinate legislation (as defined by section 21(1) Interpretation Act 1978) and any other subordinate legislation made under any such statute or statutory provision:
- 12.1.3. a reference to any enactment shall be construed as including a reference to:
- 12.1.3.1 any enactment which that enactment has directly or indirectly replaced (whether with or without modification); and
- 12.1.3.2 that enactment as re-enacted, replaced or modified from time to time, whether before, on or after the date of this document.
- 12.2. The terms of the Procurement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law and UKAD and the Bidder agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of England in relation to any matter or dispute arising out of or in connection with the Procurement. The parties agree that no implied tender contract shall arise in respect of the Bidder's participation in the Procurement.



Appendix III: Questionnaires

Please refer to separate attachment entitled "Appendix III" - Selection Questionnaire.docx and Award Questionnaire.docx

January 2025 Page 22 of 27



Appendix IV – Evaluation categories, scoring methodologies and weightings

PART A - Selection Questionnaire

Table 1 - Evaluation Categories

Section No.	Question	Evaluation Category	P/F Explanation
1	Questions 1.1-1.2	FIO	
2, 3	All questions (2.1-3.2)	P/F	 Pass = None of the exclusion grounds apply to the Bidder OR one or more of the exclusion grounds does apply but the Bidder has satisfactorily demonstrated its reliability and has therefore been considered to have 'self-cleaned' Fail = An exclusion ground applies to the Bidder and the Bidder has not satisfactorily demonstrated its reliability and has therefore not been considered to have 'self-cleaned'
4	4.1 (Contract Example 1) 4.1 (Contract Example 2)	P/F	 Pass = Examples demonstrate satisfactory previous/current experience of providing services of a Learning Management System with the opportunity to include bespoke customisations to fit the client's needs. Fail = The examples fail to meet the criteria for a "pass" as described above in respect of this Section 4.
	4.1 (Contract Example 3)		Candidates may provide their responses to this Section by appending a separate document which clearly references the question to which the response relates and the name of the Bidder (e.g., "Part A – Selection Questionnaire – Response to Section 4 – [BIDDER NAME]").
			Candidates should provide the information requested in respect of each example set out in the question (i.e., name of customer organisation, point of contact etc.). In respect of "Description of contract", responses to this section should be limited to 1,000 words for each contract example. UKAD reserves the



			right not to consider any text which exceeds the above-mentioned word limit.
	4.2	FIO	
	4.3	FIO	
	4.4-4.5	P/F	 Pass = The Bidder has confirmed that its Solution meets all the requirements stipulated Fail = The Bidder has not confirmed that its Solution meets all the requirements stipulated
5	5.1 and 5.2	P/F	 Pass = any of the following: the Bidder answers 'N/A' to question 5.1 and UKAD has no reason to determine that a 'N/A' response is incorrect; or the Bidder answers 'yes' to Question 5.1 and provides a relevant URL; or The Bidder answers 'yes' to Question 5.2, but the Bidder provides an adequate explanation for a lack of compliance. Fail = The Bidder answers 'yes' to question 5.1 and 'no' to Question 5.2 and the Bidder does not provide an adequate explanation for a lack of compliance.
6	6.1	P/F	 Pass = The Bidder has confirmed that it holds, or can put in place, the stated levels of insurance Fail = The Bidder has not confirmed that it holds, or can put in place, the stated levels
			• Fail = The Bidder has not con

PART B – Award Questionnaire

Table 2 - Evaluation Criteria

Bidders should refer to the scoring tables set out underneath each question for further details on how the evaluation team will score responses to the Award Questionnaire. The summary scoring table and associated weightings has been shown below:

Part	Question	Score	Weighting
General	Q1. Design, delivery and	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	5%
requirements and	project management		
price submission	Q2. Implementation and	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	5%
	Quality Assurance		



	Q3. Ongoing Solution	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	5%
	management	Due note	200/
	Price submission	Pro rata	30%
Assurance portal	Q1. Assurance portal	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	25%
Education	Q1. Learning Management	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	12.5%
	System		
	Q2. Education	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	12.5%
	Administration		
Testing	Q1. Testing requirements	10, 8, 5, 2, 0	5%
	Total score		



Appendix V: Form of Tender

- Having examined the Invitation to Tender, including the Appendices, and being fully satisfied in all respects with the requirements of the ITT (including the Rules of the Procurement set out in Appendix II), we hereby submit a Tender for consideration by UKAD.
- 2. We accept that UKAD is not obliged to award any contract as a result of this Procurement; that UKAD is free to amend or cancel the Procurement subject only to its obligations under the Regulations; and that neither UKAD nor any of its advisers are liable to pay any costs to any Bidder as a result of participation in this Procurement.
- 3. We confirm that the following documents have been submitted for UKAD's consideration:

This completed Form of Final Tender (Appendix V)	Yes / No
	0 0
A completed Collusive Tendering and Canvassing	Yes / No
Statement (Appendix VI)	163/140
	0 0
Completed Selection Questionnaire (Part A of Appendix III to	Yes / No
the ITT)	163/110
Completed Award Questionnaire (Part B of Appendix III to the	Yes / No
ITT)	103/110
	0 0

Signed for and on behalf of [insert Bidder name]:
Signature:
Position:
Date:



Appendix VI - Collusive Tendering and Canvassing Statement

- 1. The essence of any procurement process under the Regulations is that UKAD shall receive *bona fide* competitive Tenders from all Bidders. In recognition of this principle and in signing this statement, we warrant this is a *bona fide* Tender, intended to be competitive and, to the extent relevant, that we have not fixed or adjusted the Tender, or the rates and prices quoted by or under or in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other party.
- 2. We confirm that we have not done and undertake that we will not do at any time any of the following acts:
 - 2.1 communicate to a party other than UKAD the amount or approximate amount of my/our proposed Tender (other than in confidence in order to obtain quotations necessary for the preparation of the Tender and/or insurance);
 - 2.2 enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other party whereby that party agrees that he/she/it shall refrain from tendering or as to the amount of any Tender to be submitted;
 - 2.3 offer or agree to pay or give any sum of monetary inducement or valuable consideration directly or indirectly to any party for doing or having done or causing or having caused any act or omission to be done in relation to any other tender or the proposed Tender; and/or
 - 2.4 canvass or solicit any member, employee, agent or supplier of UKAD in connection with the Procurement.
- 3. We also confirm that no person employed by me/us or acting on my/our behalf has done or will do any act referred to above.
- 4. In this Schedule:
 - 4.1 the word "*party*" includes any person, body or association, corporate or incorporate; and
 - 4.2 the phrase "any agreement or arrangement" includes any transaction, formal or informal whether legally binding or not.

| Signature | э: |
 | |
 | |
|-----------|----|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|--|
| Position: | |
 | |
 | |
| Date: | |
 | | |

Signed for and on behalf of [insert Bidder name]: